
CITY OF WISCONSIN DELLS MEETING AGENDA 
Meeting Description                  CITY PLAN COMMISSION   
Date:  WEDNESDAY, JUNE 14, 2017      Time: 5:00PM       Location:  MUNICIPAL BUILDING  
300 LA CROSSE STREET, WISCONSIN DELLS,  

           Committee Members 
Mayor Brian Landers-Chair Alder. Mike Freel Fire Chief Scott Walsh Chris Lechnir 

  Tifani Jones Dan Anchor Lisa Delmore 
AGENDA ITEMS: 
1 CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND ATTENDANCE 

2 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE MAY 10, 2017 MEETING  

3 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FROM WD CEF, LLC DBA CUTTING 

EDGE FITNESS IN ORDER TO ALLOW LAND USE 12.11 SPORTS/FITNESS IN THE GARAGE LOCATED IN THE ALLEY 

AT 820 VINE STREET, CITY OF WISCONSIN DELLS PARCEL 1005, COLUMBIA COUNTY. THE PROPERTY IS ZONED 

C-1 COMMERCIAL-NEIGHBORHOOD. 

4 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON ITEM #3 (CUP-CUTTING EDGE FITNESS) 

5 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FROM A&G RENTALS INC/CHULA 

VISTA RESORT IN ORDER TO ALLOW  OUTDOOR ENTERTAINMENT/RECREATION AND AMUSEMENT RIDES 

LOCATED AT 2501 RIVER ROAD, CITY OF WISCONSIN DELLS PARCELS 291-00380-0015 & 291-00380-0020, ADAMS 

COUNTY. THE PROPERTY IS ZONED C-4 COMMERCIAL-LARGE SCALE.  

6 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON ITEM #5 (CUP-A&G RENTALS/CHULA VISTA) 

7 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A SITE PLAN APPLICATION FROM A&G RENTALS INC/CHULA VISTA RESORT TO 

CONSTRUCT ADDITIONAL STRUCTURES TO SUPPORT THE NEW OUTDOOR RECREATION AT 2501 RIVER ROAD, 

CITY OF WISCONSIN DELLS PARCELS 291-00380-0015 & 291-00380-0020, ADAMS COUNTY. THE PROPERTY IS 

ZONED C-4 COMMERCIAL-LARGE SCALE.   

8 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON ITEM #7 (SITE PLAN-A&G RENTALS/CHULA) 

9 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON WOODSIDE BALL FIELD CUP TO ADDRESS NUISANCE CONCERNS. 

10 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FROM WOODSIDE SPORTS, LLC IN 

ORDER TO ALLOW ADDITIONAL OUTDOOR ENTERTAINMENT/RECREATION LOCATED AT 1770 STH 13, CITY OF 

WISCONSIN DELLS PARCEL 291-00620-0010, ADAMS COUNTY. THE PROPERTY IS ZONED C-4 COMMERCIAL-

LARGE SCALE.   

11 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON ITEM #10 (CUP-WOODSIDE SPORTS) 

12 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FROM ALEXIS ELI (BLUEGREEN 

CORP) IN ORDER TO ALLOW A WALK-UP SERVICE WINDOW LOCATED AT 29 BROADWAY, CITY OF WISCONSIN 

DELLS PARCEL 11291-600, COLUMBIA COUNTY.  THE PROPERTY IS ZONED C-2 COMMERCIAL-DOWNTOWN.   

13 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON ITEM #12 (CUP-BLUEGREEN CORP.) 

14 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FROM NATHAN GRINDSTAFF ON 

BEHALF OF WORKFORCE HOUSING SOLUTIONS, LLC IN ORDER TO ALLOW SEASONAL WORKFORCE HOUSING 

AT 511 VINE ST, CITY OF WISCONSIN DELLS PARCEL 291-1113, COLUMBIA COUNTY. THE PROPERTY IS ZONED C-1 

COMMERCIAL-NEIGHBORHOOD.   

15 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON ITEM #14 (CUP-WORKFORCE HOUSING SOLUTIONS) 

16 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FROM HALLIS & JOYCE KLEIER IN 

ORDER TO ALLOW OVERNIGHT LODGING LOCATED AT 925 BROADWAY, CITY OF WISCONSIN DELLS PARCEL 291-

997, COLUMBIA COUNTY. THE PROPERTY IS ZONED C-2 COMMERCIAL-DOWNTOWN.   



17 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON ITEM #16 (CUP-KLEIER) 

18 
DISCUSSION/DECISION ON RIVERWOOD PDD-2 - GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (Condition from Nov2016 PDD-2 

Use approval)  

19 

PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A SITE PLAN APPLICATION FROM RIVERWOOD FOR PHASE 1A AT CITY OF 

WISCONSIN DELLS PARCELS AS LISTED IN THE STAFF REPORT, COLUMBIA COUNTY. THE PROPERTY IS ZONED 

PDD-2.   

20 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON ITEM #19 (SITE PLAN-RIVERWOOD) (THIS IS CONTINGENT ON ITEM #18 

21 DISCUSSION/DECISION ON RIVERWOOD DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 

22 
DISCUSSION/DECISION ON CSM – CONTINGENT OF CLEANING UP THAT PORTION OF THE PARCEL SOUTH OF 

FRONTAGE ROAD (WEI’S CHINESE) 

23 ANY OTHER ITEMS FOR REFERRAL TO FUTURE MEETINGS 

24 SET DATE FOR THE NEXT PLAN COMMISSION MEETING (WEDNESDAY, JULY 12, 2017) 

25 ADJOURNMENT 

  

 

Open Meetings Notice: If this meeting is attended by one or more members of the Common Council who are not 

members of this committee, their attendance may create a quorum of another city commission, board or committee 

under the Wisconsin Open Meetings Law; However, no formal action will be taken by any governmental body at the 

above stated meeting other than the body, committee, commission, or board identified in this meeting notice.  Please be 

advised that upon reasonable notice, the City of Wisconsin Dells will furnish appropriate auxiliary aids and services to 

afford individuals with disabilities an equal opportunity to participate in meeting activities. 

 MAYOR BRIAN LANDERS CHAIRPERSON                      DISTRIBUTED JUNE 9, 2017 



Conditional Use Permit – WD CEF, LLC Fitness Facility 
Columbia County, Wisconsin Dells Parcel 11291-1005 
Staff Report for Plan Commission, 6/14/17 
 

The City of Wis. Dells has received a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application from WD CEF, 
LLC (Holly and Corey Waterman) for a SPORTS/FITNESS FACILITY.  The use is proposed on 
Columbia County, City of Wis. Dells parcel 11291-1005, which is the location of the Dennis Electric 
shop in a four car garage behind a detached single family home at 820 Vine St.  This area is zoned C-1 
Commercial-neighborhood.   

The proposed use is a Fitness class.  The applicant currently conducts their fitness classes out 
of a property on Broadway in the C-2 Commercial-downtown Zoning district.  The applicant has stated 
they will hold 1 hour fitness classes at 5-6am, 8-9am, and 3:30-6:30pm (+- 30 minutes).  The applicant 
has also stated that this Fitness facility would not be open to the public outside of the class hours.  The 
applicant has stated they currently average 8 (+- 2) people in a class, who typically have 6 cars. 

This facility is currently in use for Skilled Trades services, which would be vacating the facility 
entirely.   The intent is for the existing single family home to remain.  Both Skilled Trades services and 
Sports/Fitness facilities are allowed in the C-1 district with a Conditional Use Permit. 
 The C-1 Zoning District is intended to accommodate low intensity commercial activities that 
serve residents rather than tourists.  This facility is a bit odd, in that it shares a premise with a 
residential use.  The parcel is a bit oversized, being comprised of 1.5 lots.   This parcel is approximately 
12,300 sq ft.  A minimum parcel size is 7,200 sq ft.  Currently, if a parcel owner wanted to establish 2 
principal uses the City would want the parcel to be at least as large as 2 minimum sized parcels, or 
14,400 sq ft.  Therefore, the  commercial use on this parcel would be considered an existing non-
conforming use.  The Zoning code allows a non-conforming use to change to a different non-
conforming use.   
 While the proposed Fitness use is conditionally permitted in this Zoning District, the existing 
alley access seems like more of a concern for the proposed use than the existing use.   The existing 
use has limited traffic, in that no customers visit the site and it is only utilized by employees.  The 
proposed use requires customers to visit the site, bringing commercial traffic to what is otherwise a 
residential alley.  
 The standard concerns with any new use would be adequate parking, smooth traffic flow, 
garbage pickup, and nuisances to surrounding properties.  The zoning code would normally require 
around 10 parking spaces for this facility.  However, because the site already contains an existing use,  
and the Zoning code only requires parking for increase in spaces required from the old use to the new 
use.  The existing use would require around 4 parking stalls.  Therefore, the code would require about 6 
parking stalls for this new use.  The applicant has stated they expect to need 6 stalls.   There appears 
be space off the alley for 3 legal stalls.   
 The applicant has indicated that they intend to park 6 cars perpendicular to the alley along their 
building, and would also like to utilize on-street parking for any additional needs they may have.  It does 
not appear there is enough room from the building to the alley to accommodate a legal parking stall (19 
ft).  There appears to be 35 ft with 18 ft from the building to the alley and 40 ft with 16 ft from the 
building to the alley.  Perpendicular parking along the building would likely encroach into the alley.  
There appears to be adequate space for 3 parallel stalls along the alley.    

Chris
Text Box
Items 3&4



 In addition to encroaching on the alley when parking, the increased parking adjacent to the alley 
would increase the traffic within the alley.  As an alley rather than a street, this area is not designed for 
heavy traffic.  At 20 ft wide, and alley is not wide enough to allow 2-way traffic. 
 There would be space for additional parking to be installed on the other side of the building, 
which would be accessed from Vine St.  It appears there is width for 7 stalls perpendicular to the 
building.  However, there does not appear to be access into the building from the back side.   In 
addition, access to the back side of the garage building would require people to go through the 
residential driveway on the property.  As a single property they may be able to share the drive, but it 
would not be an ideal situation.  The applicant has stated they do not want to add parking on the back 
side of the building, and would not utilize this site if they had to remove the house to accommodate 
parking. 
 Without installing adequate parking on the west side of the building, it would seem utilizing on-
street parking would be better than utilizing sub-standard parking along the alley. 

The City can approve the CUP to allow a use to begin without all the parking spaces required by 
code, with the condition that the parking spaces to be added in the future if they are deemed necessary 
by this City in its sole discretion.  Normally, this would occur when an applicant presents a reasonable 
justification that all the spaces required by the code are not necessary in reality, and that they will be 
able to provide adequate parking for their use without constructing the number of parking stalls required 
by the code.  This application would be different, as the applicant has stated that they intend to use 
non-standard or on-street parking for their business. 

Due to this being an existing commercial structure, it seems that a Conditional Use could be 
issued, with the contingency that the proper off-street parking stalls and building access be installed if 
deemed necessary by the City in its sole judgment.  As with any new use, but especially given the 
unusual nature of this property, any approval should be contingent on the applicant cooperating with 
the City to adequately address any nuisances that may occur. 
 
Any approval should carry the following conditions: 
 1. The applicant install proper parking and building access, approved by the City, if it is deemed 
necessary by the City in its sole judgment. 
 2.  The use of the facility is limited to the 3 stated blocks of time (+- 30 min).  Any increased use 
may require additional approval by the City. 
 3.  The applicant cooperates with the City to adequately address any nuisances that may occur. 
 
Chris Tollaksen 
City of Wis. Dells  
6/9/2017 













 2501 River Rd. – Chula Vista 
Conditional Use Permit & Site Plan – Outdoor Entertainment/Recreation & Amusement ride  
Staff Report for Plan Commission, 06/14/17 

 
The Planning & Zoning office has received a Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan application from A&G Rentals / Chula 
Vista Resort to allow Outdoor Entertainment/Recreation & Amusement Ride on Adams Co, City of Wis. Dells tax parcels 
291-0038-00015 & 291-0038-00020.  This request is to add Outdoor & indoor climbing walls, Ziplines, Hover Boards, 
aerial park (1 permanent & 1 may be trailer mounted), a kiddie train unit, and a bungee trampoline.  Some structures 
will also be constructed to cover or house some of these uses or supplies for these uses. These uses are all to be added 
in and around the existing Waterpark area.  The site map provided shows the location of these facilities.   This property 
is in the C-4 Commercial-large scale Zoning District, which requires a CUP for Outdoor entertainment / recreation.   
 As additional activities within an existing approved Outdoor Entertainment/Recreation use area, with existing 
permanent structures for restroom and ticket sales operations, this would not be considered a use without a permanent 
structure with washrooms.    
 Site plan approval is required for any new commercial buildings. 
   In addition to permanent restroom and sales buildings, the Chula Vista facility has significant parking facilities to 
accommodate the existing recreation uses.  It is expected that the new uses provide additional activities to existing 
patrons to this facility.   The same rational would apply to any other potential effects on the area, as additions to an 
existing use and development, no significant impacts are expected. 
 Any new commercial structure structures would have to obtain building permits, and amusement rides are 
inspected and licensed by the State.  Approval of these uses should be contingent on them holding all the appropriate 
licenses and permits. 
 

 
Conditions of any CUP approval: 

1) All associated license and permits are obtained and in good standing. 
 

Prepared by:  Chris Tollaksen, City of Wisconsin Dells. 

Chris
Text Box
Items 5, 6, 7 & 8

















Original Woodside CUP Review 
 
The City has received nuisance complaints from neighbors of the Woodside Sports Complex dating back 
to the first opening of the facility.  These complaints have primarily been about amplified music being 
played at the facility.  The complaints have included the music being played when there was no activity 
at the facility, the music being played too loudly, and the music played too early. 
 
The initial application for this facility did not include amplified music as part of their operating 
conditions, and only referenced “PA / Announcements” as possible off-site conditions.  The Staff report 
for the original permit commented that it was understood the amplified announcements would be 
limited to Championship games.   The Staff report for the original permit brought up noise concerns, and 
asked that the applicant cooperate with the City to minimize these concerns. 
 
The City has also received complaints about the number of balls that leave the facility and go into the 
road and neighboring properties.  It appears much taller barrier exist between the field than exist 
between the facility and the road. 
 
 
Chris Tollaksen 
City of Wisconsin Dells 
Planning & Zoning  

Chris
Text Box
Item 9





Conditional Use Permit & Site Plan 
Woodside Sports Complex 
Staff Report for Plan Commission, 08/07/13 
 

The City has received a Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan Permit application from Woodside Sports 
Complex to construct a large soccer and baseball field development on Adams Co, City of Wis. Dells tax 
parcels 620, 630, 640, 650, and a portion of parcels 520 and 530.   
 This applicant is applying for CUP and Site plan approval concurrently and many of the issues 
addressed for these 2 permits are the same, however independent public hearings and approval will be 
required for the CUP and Site Plan respectively.  CUP approval is generally more of a concept approval of the 
use and the Site Plan is approval of the more specific plans for the project.  This report with try to address 
items for each application separately, but there will be many overlapping concerns.  For the CUP consideration 
the main objective will be to describe the use being proposed. 
CUP Report: 
This project will involve the creation of the following land uses which require Conditional Use Permits, as 
described by the City of Wis. Dells Zoning Code:  

Principal    Use -  12.8 “Outdoor entertainment/recreation”  
Accessory Uses-  20.13 “Outdoor commercial food and beverage service” 
 20.25 “Walk-up service window” 
 Temporary restrooms – requires CUP approval per Zoning code Sec. 19.675 

 
The applicant is proposing constructing 6 outdoor baseball fields and 10 outdoor soccer fields, along with a 
concession stand with walk-up windows and outdoor seating areas.   The applicant may also wish to install 
temporary restrooms on the facility.  The current plan is for the 6 baseball fields and 8 soccer fields on the 
southern portion of the property to be synthetic grass, and the 2 soccer field near the large parking lot on the 
northern portion of the property would be grass, irrigated by a new private well. The total site is 64.11 acres, 
which includes a 100 ft right of way from STH 13 to  Lane and a 66 ft right of way for a backage road that could 
serve existing commercial uses on STH 13.  A chain link fence is proposed to surround all the ball fields. 
The applicant would like to start construction on the site as soon as possible.  This site is currently owned by 
the City, which purchased the property with the intent to develop the ball fields.  This site is currently unused 
fields, mostly cleared of trees.  The intent is for the one significant wooded area on the property to remain.  The 
plan is for the fields to be utilized to host large scale youth athletic tournaments.  
This development is directed towards the players and their families and not necessarily to drawn a large 
number of spectators to the events.  Still, the size of the facility will allow for a large number of teams to attend 
tournaments, causing a significant increase to the traffic and activity at the site.  The tournaments are 
proposed to run from 8am – 10 pm, and may run later if there are delays due to weather or other issues.  
There will be a lighting installed on the fields and an amplified announcement system.  
A new access for this site, likely a roundabout, will be constructed on STH 13 in accordance with WisDOT 
standards.  A Traffic Impact Analysis has been completed and is currently being reviewed by WisDOT.  
A clubhouse will be constructed centrally on the grounds and will provide an area for teams and organizers to 
coordinate the activities.  The existing wooded area on the site will remain for the purposes of shading and a 
concession stand will be constructed within the wooded area.  The concessions with likely be sold from walk-
up windows, with outdoor dining areas created in the shade of the existing trees.  Additional picnic tables and 
other seating will likely be scattered throughout the site.  On the east of the property will be the maintenance 
building and garbage containers, which will be accessed from  Ave.  Between the clubhouse and concession 
stands will be a playground.  Batting cages will be installed near the 4 baseball fields and a soccer warm up 
area will exist at the southern tip of the property.   
 



The applicant may wish to utilize temporary bathrooms at the southern tip of the property.  Additional 
temporary restroom may be utilized to service the northern soccer fields that are more than 500 ft from the 
clubhouse and concession stand.  Use of temporary restrooms is being considered under Zoning code 
section19.675, which requires all commercial activity occur on a premise having a permanent building with 
permanent plumbing.  As this requirement can be waived using the CUP process, the applicant’s request to 
use portable restrooms to meet restroom requirements is part of the CUP approval.  A more detailed 
description of the restroom situation for this project is included in the site plan report.   
 
Traffic, lighting, and amplified announcements would appear to pose the most potential for significant impact 
on the surrounding properties.  Approval of this CUP should come with the contingency that developer 
cooperates with the City to minimize any effects on surrounding properties. 
 
Site Plan Report: 
 This project will involve a significant amount of land disturbance, which will require the applicant to 
obtain a grading permit from the DNR.  As a ball field development this project will not involve the creation of a 
huge amount of impervious area, so increased run-off is not as big of a concern.  A storm water management 
plan will be conducted for this development and approved by City staff.   
1. Parking 
The largest creation of impervious area will be the parking lot to be constructed on the north portion of this 
plan.  In part to alleviate costs but also to improve storm water infiltration a significant amount of this parking lot 
will not be paved.  The parking south of Woodside way will all be paved.  For the large parking lot north of 
Woodside Way, the southern  with be paved, the center  will have paved aisles but grass parking stalls and 
the northern  will be all grass.  Due to the size of this project and the distance from the gated entries to other 
potential parking areas, it seems very unlikely that patrons to this facility would park anywhere besides within 
this facility.  In addition, while the applicant’s objective would be to utilize this facility at maximum capacity as 
much as possible, it is unlikely that this will occur immediately.  Therefore, there does not seem to be a major 
concern with the main parking lot including grass parking stalls.  Infrastructure designs, such as stormwater 
ponds, will be sized based on a fully paved parking lot.  It would seem that any issues with the parking at this 
facility would be felt primarily by the operator of the facility.  It would also seem that if traffic at this facility is so 
high that more paved parking would be required, the applicant should be in a position to invest in more paved 
parking at that time.  That said, this facility represents a rather unique case in determining the maximum 
capacity.  The applicant provided an estimate for facility occupancy using the known number of players and 
coaches per team and the maximum number of teams this facility could accommodate.  An estimate of just 
under 2 spectators per team member (players & coaches) was used.  The applicant has calculated that if every 
field were to be utilized at maximum capacity there would be a total of 660 players and 1200 spectators for a 
maximum capacity of 1860 people utilizing the facility.  Using the standard in the zoning code to provide 1 
parking stall for every 3 patrons, this facility should have 620 parking stalls.   
The applicant currently has an existing facility up and running at the Woodside Ranch property in Mauston.  
The applicant has provided their observations of parking usage at that facility (currently only baseball fields).  
The applicant has then made some assumptions and conversions to translate the number of cars that will 
arrive at the Wis. Dells facility based on the current observations at Mauston facility.  Those calculations 
produced a maximum parking requirement of 900 stalls for the proposed Wis. Dells facility.  This seems to 
follow the logic that there will be some overlap of the patrons at the facility for on-going games and those who 
will arrive at the site for the following games.   
The proposed parking plan would provide 325 fully paved parking stalls (132 clubhouse, 193 north lot), with 
another 310 grass parking stalls with paved aisles.  The plan also includes another 325 parking stalls that 
would be graded and grass only.  The applicant is figuring on there being some overlap between patrons 
actually utilizing the playing fields of the facility and those patrons who would be preparing to utilize the fields 
when those games are completed.  The current plan also includes 78 parking stalls at the maintenance 

Chris
Highlight



building that would be utilized by facility staff.  This comes to a grand total of 1038 stalls.  By all accounts the 
proposed total number of stalls should be adequate for this facility.  The number of totally paved stalls does not 
meet the code requirement based on maximum capacity, however they applicant does not expect to achieve 
maximum capacity immediately.  It has been past practice to allow facilities to not fully pave their required 
parking as long as they have the space to expand their paved parking in the future, if necessary. 
2. Pedestrian Crossing   
Another item of concern would be the pedestrian crossing of Woodside Way, from the parking lot to the ball 
fields.  Approval of this site plan should be contingent on City approval of the final crossing design, with the 
thought that the crossing may move away from the parking lot entrance to allow separation of pedestrian 
crossing and vehicle traffic into and out of the parking lot.   
3. Bathrooms 
The plan application shows 3 permanent buildings, all of which will be equipped with restrooms.  A  restroom 
location as been identified at the south tip of the property.  The applicant has expressed a desire for this  
restroom facility to be temporary restrooms.  It is understood that these facilities will not be porta-potties, but 
rather the new portable restroom facilities in trailers with sinks and flushable toilets.  It should be noted that the 
temporary restrooms are proposed to be constructed almost directly over City water and sewer facilities.   The 
building code standard is for path of travel to restrooms to be within 500 ft.   The 3 public restroom facilities on 
the south portion of the property provide restroom within 500 ft of the 8 soccer fields and 6 baseball fields.  
However, the 2 grass soccer fields near the large parking lot to the north of the property will be much further 
than 500 ft from the restrooms.  It is expected that when these northern fields are utilized, addition portable 
restroom may utilized north of Woodside Way. 
Based on the occupancy projections utilized for the parking requirements, there may be a significant number of 
bathrooms required for this facility.  Approval should be granted now if temporary bathrooms are going to be 
allowed to meet these requirements.  Obviously, portable bathrooms could be moved to ensure they are within 
reasonable distances to patrons of the ball fields. 
4. Utilities (existing easements) 
Utilities exist on the along the southern border of the property that were installed to for the Prairie Oak 
Subdivision.  The majority of the ball fields are outside of the utility easement, but the southern most soccer 
field is over the utilities.  The City needs to have easements in place over these utilities.  The applicant must be 
aware that if there are any issues with these utilities, the City may have to dig them up to be repaired on short 
notice.  The City will fill any hole to sub-grade, but will not be responsible for replacing the soccer fields to their 
improved state.  It should also be noted that some of the utilities we installed outside of the described 
easement and that easement will need to be modified.  Access to these utilities shall be provided through the 
perimeter gate surrounding this facility. 
5. Additional Utility Easements 
To ensure property north of this development can be served by City utilities in the future, the City would like a 
10 ft utility easement along the east side of the n-s backage road, so that future sanitary sewer can be installed 
without tearing up the road. 
6. Hydrant Accessability 
All hydrants are to be made accessible, primarily for emergency response.  It should be noted that if the 
backage road along STH 13 is not constructed, the developer shall be responsible for providing adequate 
access, approved by the Fire Chief, to the hydrant that is to be located in that right of way.  The City would also 
want to have access to hydrants on private property for routine exercising of valves to ensure everything will 
function properly if an emergency situation should occur. 
7. Private Well 
The applicant would like to install a private well to irrigate the 2 grass soccer fields on the north of the project 
site.  Private wells may be permitted within the City, particularly if such wells do not feed systems that utilize 
the public sanitary sewer.  Private wells are subject to well permit requirements. 
 



8.  Privacy fence abutting residential properties 
This development will represent a significant change to the area.  This site is surrounded by a mix of 
commercial, agricultural, and single family uses.   
Privacy barriers should be installed in the perimeter fence adjacent to residential uses.   
9.  Future light screens, if necessary  
Lighting at this site would be designed to stay on the ball fields and not bleed off onto neighboring properties.  
The applicant is expected to cooperate with the City to address any issues that may occur to due to lighting 
bleeding onto neighboring properties.   
 
The applicant has stated that amplified announcement of play by play will not occur at the vast majority of 
games; play by play may only occur for the championship game of a significant tournament.  Otherwise 
amplified announcement should only occur for emergency/weather reports. 
 The City has been working on developing ball fields in this area to help increase traffic to the Dells area.  
However, these ball fields are designed more to cater to teams rather than to a large amount of spectators.  So 
traffic should be spread out over the entire day, rather than huge surges of traffic at one particular time (i.e. 
when a games ends).  A Traffic Impact Analysis has been performed to help ensure roadway improvements 
made will be adequate to handle the traffic that this development would generate.  The new access off STH 13 
will be onto the new Woodside Way which will connect STH 13 to this project and continue east to  Ave.  
Woodside Way will be a four lane road from STH 13 to the parking lot entrance towards the middle of the 
property.  East of the parking entrance Woodside Way will continue as a 2-lane road to  Ave.  This portion of 
the roadway will be constructed to be easily converted to a four lane road if traffic needs increase, potentially 
for a new school east  Ave.  The right of way for Woodside way will also be large enough to allow utilities to be 
run east to  Ave in the future without disturbing the roadway. 
As a large unused field this property is well suited for the development of large outdoor ball fields. 
This property was annexed into the City with the intention of developing an outdoor sports complex on this site.  
The comprehensive plan was updated in January 2013 to include this property as a potential commercial use 
in preparation of the development of ball fields on this site.  
As most of the development of this property will be grading with relatively little creation of impervious area, this 
commercial development would have relatively low impact on the natural environment.  This property is already 
mostly cleared of trees and the one significant wooded area that remains on the property will be saved and 
incorporated as an outdoor seating area. 
This development will create a significant increase in traffic at this site.  As such a Traffic Impact Analysis has 
been completed and a new improved intersection with STH 13 will be constructed.  Construction of a new 
access off of STH 13 will not be able to begin until next year, after the facility is opened.  Therefore, a 
temporary access will have to be utilized in 2014. 
It is the expectation that this project will spur development of permitted uses on the surrounding properties. 
The main items highlighted for consideration are: 

1. Applicant would like to incorporate grass parking, with paved access to required stall and all grass for 
overflow stalls. 

2. Potentially provide separation between the pedestrian crossing of Woodside Way and the vehicle 
access off Woodside Way into the parking area. 

3. Applicant requests permission to utilize Temporary Bathrooms 
4. The City would like utility easements that cover existing utilities on south of property and 

acknowledgement that the City is not responsible for ball fields surfaces that must be disturbed during 
emergency service of utility mains. 

5. The City would like utility easements to property north of this development so that future utilities could 
be installed with minimal roadway disturbance. 

6. Fire Hydrants are to be accessible to the City.  This includes providing paved access if potential roads 
are not developed and allowing access to private hydrants so they can be exercised. 

Chris
Highlight



7. The applicant would like to create a Private well to irrigate the 2 grass soccer fields. 
8. Privacy screens should be included in the chain link boundary fence where the project abuts residential 

properties. 
9. Additional screening of field lighting should be provided to abate excessive light bleed onto neighboring 

properties, if a legitimate issue is found after development Is completed. 
 
As a general contingency for any project of this size, the final plans must meet approval of City staff.  This 
project plan indicates that most of the utilities for this project will be newly installed.  All utilities must be 
constructed to City standards and utilities that end up in road right of way will be dedicated to the City after 
construction. 
 
Chris Tollaksen 
Wis. Dells Public Works 









 1770 STH 13 – Woodside Sports Complex 
Conditional Use Permit & Site Plan – Outdoor Entertainment/Recreation   
Staff Report for Plan Commission, 06/14/17 

 
The Planning & Zoning office has received a Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan application from Woodside Sports, LLC 
to allow Outdoor Entertainment/Recreation on Adams Co, City of Wis. Dells tax parcel 291-0062-00010.  This request is 
to add 3 to 5 blow up structures for children to bounce & play on (bounce house, obstacle course, slide, ect.)  These uses 
are all to be added in an open area near the batting cages at the existing Woodside ball fields.  The site map provided 
shows the location of these facilities.  
 This property is located in the C-4 Commercial-large scale Zoning District, and a Conditional Use permit is 
required for Outdoor entertainment/recreation uses in this zone.  As additional activities within an existing approved 
Outdoor Entertainment/Recreation use area, with existing permanent structures for restroom and ticket sales 
operations, this would not be considered a use without a permanent structure with washrooms.    
 Inflatable are considered Amusement rides by the State DSPS and will require state registration and inspection. 
 A concern with inflatable structures outside would be that they are properly anchored so they are not blow 
around by the wind.  These structures should remain current and compliant with any requirements for permitting, 
licensing, and inspection requirements.  
 
   The Woodside facility has limited permanent parking facilities and has an agreement with the City to utilize City 
owned property directly north of their venue for overflow grass parking.  It is expected that the new uses provide 
additional activities to existing patrons to this facility.   The same rational would apply to any other potential effects on 
the area, as additions to an existing use and development, no significant impacts are expected. 
 The only concern with this request would be in nuisance complaints the City has received from the existing use 
from neighboring property owners.  As part of the original Permit for this facility, the City brought up the concern of 
nuisances to existing residences in the area, specifically amplified noise concerns.  The City asked that Woodside 
cooperate to minimize any nuisances from their facility.  The City has not found Woodside cooperative in addressing 
these nuisance concerns.  It does not seem prudent to approved permits for additional uses at this Site unless Woodside 
can be cooperative with the City on concerns with the existing uses.  
  

 
Conditions of any CUP approval: 

1) Woodside is not found to be in violation of the City noise/nuisance Ordinance. 
2) The inflatables are all property registered and licensed. 
3)  The inflatables are securely anchored. 

 
Prepared by:  Chris Tollaksen, City of Wisconsin Dells. 

Chris
Text Box
Items 10 & 11







Chris
Line

Chris
Text Box
ProposedLocation



Conditional Use Permit – Bluegreen Timeshare 
29 Broadway 
Staff Report for Plan Commission, 6/14/17 
 
The City of Wis. Dells has received a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application from Alexis Eli for a Walk-up Service 
Window at 29 Broadway, Columbia Co, City of Wis. Dells tax parcel 291-600.  This property is located in the C-2 
Commercial – downtown Zoning District.  A Conditional Use Permit is required for a Walk-up service window in this 
Zoning District. 
 
This location is an existing small booth located at the east end of the Riverfront area.  There is no access for the public 
within this booth, and it was constructed and used in past to serve customers standing outside the booth on the 
sidewalk.  This booth has not been actively used for several years.   If a Conditionally permitted use is discontinued for 
more than 12 months a new CUP must be obtained before the use can start again.  The applicant is renting this location 
and intends to open a Visitors office and sell mini vacation packeages and attraction tickets from the booth in the 
summer months.  

A concern with the use of a Walk-up service window onto the public sidewalk is the disruption of pedestrian 
flow on the sidewalk.  Any approval of this CUP must be contingent on the applicant managing any lines that may form 
at the window to ensure pedestrians flow along the sidewalk is maintained.  As a general rule a minimum of 4 ft of clear 
sidewalk must be maintained.  The sidewalks at this location are approximately 11 ft from building to curb, and there is 
an alcove at the booth that would allow customers to leave the public sidewalk when at the booth. 
It should also be made clear to the applicant that there is to be no barking, calling out, or other attempts to attract the 
attention of pedestrians on the public sidewalk.  No speakers should be mounted to the exterior of the building.  Any 
pamphlets, flyers, or other literature of any kind is only provided to customers at the booth, and should not be offered 
to passersby to attract their attention or for any other reason.  In anything from this ticket booth becomes litter in the 
surrounding area, even if it is not directly in front of the ticket booth, the applicant is responsible for ensuring that litter 
is properly disposed of. 
 If signage is installed on the building for this use, it is to be removed immediately if this use discontinues or if the 
applicant no longer leases the premise. 
 The fire department has expressed concerns with these ticket booths in town.  The applicant will have to ensure 
that any use of this space meet the approval of the fire department.  
 
Any approval of this CUP should come with the following contingencies: 
 1.  The applicant maintains a clear path for pedestrian traffic around their Walk-up service window. 

2.  The applicant maintains the sidewalks in front of their businesses, and cleans up litter associated with there 
business from the surrounding area. 

3.  The applicant complies with any concerns from the fire department. 
4.  There is no “barking” or calling out from the booth to people on the sidewalk or street.   
5.  Any pamphlets or flyers that may be distributed from the booth are only given to customer at the booth, and are 

not offered to passersby to attract their attention of for any other reason.  The applicant cleans the surrounding 
area of any litter from their business. 

6.  Any signage installed on the building for this use is removed once this use discontinues or the applicant no 
longer leases the premise. 

7.  This permit is non-transferrable.  Any new user of this walk-up service window must obtain a new permit 
Chris Tollaksen 
City of Wis. Dells  
6/14/2017 

Chris
Text Box
Items 12 & 13





Conditional Use Permit – Seasonal Workforce Housing 
 511 Vine St.- new owner for Existing facility 
Staff Report for Plan Commission, 6/14/2017 
 
The City of Wis. Dells has received a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application from Nathan Grindstaff on behalf of 
Workforce Housing Solutions, LLC for a Seasonal Workforce Housing Facility at the 511 Vine St.  This property is in the 
C-1 Commercial – neighborhood Zoning District, which requires a Conditional Use Permit for Seasonal Workforce 
Housing. 
  
This property has been operated as a Seasonal Workforce Housing facility for several years.  The applicant intends to 
purchase the facility and continue to run it for Seasonal Workforce Housing. 
It was a condition of the current owners CUP that any new owners of the facility obtain a new CUP from the City. 
New operators of a Seasonal Workforce housing facility must obtain a one-time CUP for the use and then annually renew 
the Seasonal Workforce Housing license.  
  
The current owner of this facility has managed and maintained the facility at a high level of quality.  This office has not 
received any complaints about this facility, and inspections have found it to be one of the best maintained in the City.  
The applicant has stated that they have been actively managing the facility for the current owner for the last couple of 
years, and wish to obtain full control of the facility.  This office has no reason to believe the applicant will not continue the 
high quality management and maintenance of the facility, but wishes to make it clear to the applicant they will be expected 
to do so. 
 
It has been past practice that any approval of a Group Lodging Facility use is granted solely to the current applicant, and 
cannot be transferred to another party.  Any sale of the property will terminate the permit, and any subsequent owner will 
be required to obtain a separate CUP for this facility.   Another past practice is to make it clear to the applicant that 
approval is contingent on continued diligence to the proper management of the facility.  If the facility is deemed to become 
a nuisance to the surrounding properties, the permit may be revoked. 
This property is located in a commercial area that is near a full grocery store, laundry, library, and other services the 
residences may need. This facility is away from the main commercial area but is still close to the center of town. 
This use should not have a significant impact on the traffic circulation in this area. 
As this use will take place in an existing facility, the effects on the natural environment will be minimal. 
This use could have a negative effect on surrounding commercial properties, as employee housing can become a 
nuisance property if not properly managed. This property currently is in need of maintenance and the applicant is 
expected to address these items.  
 
Approval of this permit may contain the following contingencies. 
1.  The permit is not transferrable, any new owner or operator of this facility must obtain a new permit. 
2.  The facility shall be properly maintained and managed to prevent it from becoming a nuisance. 
3.  The City is always provided with a current contact as the site manager.  The City may contact this manager with any 
issues at the facility.  That contact, included verbal only, will be considered “Official notice” of any enforcement items, and 
may be followed up with enforcement actions such as the issuing of citations.  
 
Chris Tollaksen 
City of Wis. Dells 

Chris
Text Box
Items 14 & 15

















Conditional Use Permit – Broadway Motel 
925 Broadway Rd 
Staff Report for Plan Commission, 6/14/2017 
 
 
The City of Wis. Dells has received a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application from Joyce & Hollis Kleier 
for an Overnight Lodging Facility at the Broadway Motel located at 925 Broadway Rd.  This property is in 
the C-2 Commercial-downtown Zoning District, which requires a Conditional Use Permit for Overnight 
Lodging. 
 

The applicants intend to purchase this facility contingent on their ability to re-open it as an 
Airbnb.  The applicants have been informed that this use would be considered a motel due to the short 
term rentals of the property, regardless of the fashion in which the rooms are booked.  The applicant 
was also informed that the facility would be required to obtain a license from the State and pay all 
applicable taxes associated with the rental of the facility, included the local room tax and premier resort 
tax.  This facility is immediately adjacent to residential properties to the west and north. 

The intention to rent the facility as an Airbnb implies the facility will not be managed as a 
standard motel, and possibly not have 24-7 on-site supervision.  Such a use carries some concerns.  The 
applicant has stated that they intent to have a family member live on-site for the first year to get the 
facility up and running smoothly.  However, after that time they intend to place the single family home 
on the property in the rental pool, and have a local manager who live about 5 miles away manage the 
property.  If this were to be permitted, the name and contact information of the local manager must be 
supplied to the City with current information.    

 This facility currently does not hold a valid permit to operate any commercial activity on the 
premise.  The facility is rather old and in need of substantial remodeling and rehabilitation.  There City 
currently has property maintenance orders out to the owners of the facility for general maintenance 
requirements. 
 The applicants have stated that they intend to invest $100,000 to $150,000 in the facility.  The 
have stated they have a history of purchasing dilapidated homes and rehabilitating them into high end 
“vacation rentals by owner” (vrbo), but have not operated a multi-unit facility before. The City has no 
references for the applicant.  This facility is in the C-2 Commercial – downtown Zoning district and is 
subject to the Design Standards and approval by the Design Review Committee of any work they do on 
the property.  
 
When last inspected, this facility had 8 rooms; 7 of the rooms were approximately 200 sq ft with 1 of the 
rooms about twice as large.  There were a second larger room that was being utilized for storage, as well 
as a garage on the property, and the single family residence. 
There appeared to be space for 7 or 8 cars to park at this facility.  Since the facility is in the C-2 
Commercial-downtown zoning district, there is no parking requirement.  However, the standard parking 
requirement in the zoning code for motels facilities is 1 space for each room plus 1 space for each 
employee.  2 spaces are required for a single family house.  The total parking standard from the zoning 

Chris
Text Box
Items 16 & 17



code would be 2 spaces for the house and 1 space for each room (all under 400 sq ft), for a total of 10 
spaces.  
Returning this facility to a motel use would bring it more in line with the Comprehensive plan for this 
location as a commercial use.   
 
The proposed use of this facility may cause parking problems at this facility.  However, this is an existing 
facility in the C-2 district without a parking requirement.  Still, the applicant would be expected to 
cooperate with the City if parking issues arise.  This could include limiting the number of rooms that may 
be rented on any one night.   

As this facility already exists, these uses pose no addition impact on the natural environment. 
It would seem facility without 24-7 supervision and management would have a higher potential to be a 
nuisance to surrounding properties and this facility is adjacent to residential uses.  This facility is also 
surrounded by commercial properties, and poor property maintenance could have a negative impact on 
the ability of these businesses to attract customers.  On the other hand, this facility was already in a 
state of severe distress, and if done properly, the applicant’s rehabilitation of the property could be a 
significant improvement.   

As this facility already exists, it is not a new hindrance to future development of this area.   If 
this property were improved it could be an improvement to the area.  
 The execution of the proposed rehabilitation of this facility is a significant factor in this proposed 
use. 
 Approval of this use should come with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant complies with the Design Standards and recommendations of the Design 
Review Committee. 

2. The applicant maintains all applicable licenses and permits and pay all applicable taxes. 
3. The applicant addresses any parking concerns that may arise, potential limiting the 

maximum occupancy of the facility. 
4. The facility is managed and maintained to a high level of quality.  Failure to do so could 

result in revocation of this permit.  
5. The City always has current and valid contact information for the site manager.  This 

person is responsible for receiving and addressing any issues that may arise.  Any 
notices of violations given to this person, even verbally, shall be considered official 
notice. 

6. The applicant cooperates with the City to address any nuisances that may arise from this 
facility. 

  
Optional  
 1. An on-site manager must live at the facility. 
 
Chris Tollaksen 
City of Wis. Dells Public Works 











Staff Report 
Planned Development District – General Development Plan (GDP) & Phase 1A Specific Site Plan (SSP). 
City of Wis. Dells Plan Commission, 6/14/2017 
 

The City has received and updated General Development Site Plan for the Riverwood Development 
PDD application, as well as a Site plan application for the Specific Site Plan of Phase 1A of the Development.  
Riverwood has submitted a Site plan application for Phase 1A which consists of one single story development 
containing:  30 Assisted Living unit, 22 Memory Care units, and 13 Independent Living duplexes (totally 26 
apartment) with a Community Nook  (coffee and grab-and-go food) and a Telemedicine Suite (clinical exam 
rooms, office space and waiting area.  The Site plan application references the Phase 1B 38 unit apartment 
building, but that is not part of this approval. 

The City needs to approve the GDP of the entire development so that the PDD Zoning process can be 
completed.  At that point this property will be Zoned PDD-2.  Then the City will need to approve the Site plan 
application before a building permit can be issued for Phase 1A.  Phase 1A is limited to the development of 30 
Assisted Living units and 22 memory care units with a Community Nook (coffee and grab-and-go food) and a 
Telemedicine Suite (clinical exam rooms, office space and waiting area) on Parcel 11291-2200.1903; as well 
as 13 independent living duplexes (totaling 26 apartments) on parcels 11291-2200.701 thru 11291-2200.707 
and 11291-2200.736 thru 11291-2200.743. 

 
In November 2016 Riverwood Eagle’s Nest, LLC had requested a zoning map change to re-zone the 

Riverwood Eagle Watch Condominiums and the associated Phase II and Phase III condominium expansion 
lands from R-5 Residential – multi-family to Planned Development District 2.  The applicant would like to 
develop a 50+ senior living community that will provide independent living, assisted care, memory care, and 
medical services.  The development will also include food, recreation, and wellness activities; as well as 
worship, meeting, and social areas.  Overnight lodging will also be made available in the development for it’s 
resident families and guests.   

 The conceptual General Development site plan for this development was largely acceptable, with the 
main concern being the lack of a secondary emergency access across the RR tracks.  While a full train 
derailment seems unlikely, train stoppages due to other issues such as hitting a vehicle have occurred.  
Riverwood did not make a significant effort to find a solution, stating to the public safety committee that their 
contractor had advised a tunnel under the railroad would be possible.  This needed to be verified and the PDD 
approval was held contingent on a solution to the secondary access being found that was acceptable to 
Emergency management personnel.  The City made its own investment with their engineers to evaluate the 
options for a crossing of the RR track, and they immediately determined that a tunnel under the tracks was not 
feasible.  Preliminarily, a bridge over the tracks was deemed more realistic, but preliminary estimates put the 
costs at $1-5 million depending on location, with the lower cost options having other access concerns.  There 
remains the concern with gaining approval from the RR to construct a new off-grade RR crossing.  The City’s 
engineers also evaluated the possibility of utilizing the existing RR tunnel at Grand Cambrian Dr. and 
constructing a road connected Grand Cambrian Dr. with Bowman Rd.  Preliminary, this option seems more 
cost effective at approximately $750,000.  However, this did not include costs to complete the access road 
through the tunnel under the bridge, and the connecting road would pass through a DNR controlled wetland 
and it is unclear if permission to construct the road would be granted by the DNR. 

Riverwood has stated that their licensing from DHS addresses emergency response accessibility to the 
Site.  DHS was contacted to determine the extent of Site access in their review.  The DHS referenced the State 
Administrative Code Chapter DHS 83 and referred the City to 2 section in particular.  The exiting section 
83.59(1)(g) and the emergency disaster plan 83.47(2). 

83.59(1)(g) states :  (g) Exits, sidewalks and driveways used for exiting shall be kept free of ice, snow, and 
obstructions. For facilities serving only ambulatory residents, the CBRF shall maintain a cleared pathway from 
all exterior doors to be used in an emergency to a public way or safe distance away from the building. For 
facilities serving semi-ambulatory and non-ambulatory residents, a CBRF shall maintain a cleared, hard surface, 
barrier-free walkway to a public way or safe distance away from the building for at least 2 primary exits from 
the building. All other required exits shall have at least a cleared pathway maintained to a public way or safe 
distance from the building. An exit door or walkway to a cleared driveway leading away from the CBRF also 
meets this requirement. 

83.47(2) states:  (2) EMERGENCY AND DISASTER PLAN. 

Chris
Text Box
Items 18, 19, 20 & 21



(a) Written plan. The CBRF shall have a written plan for responding to emergencies and disasters that is readily 
available to all employees. The plan shall specify the responsibilities of employees. The plan shall include all of 
the following: 

1. Procedures for orderly evacuation or other department-approved response during an emergency or disaster. The 
plan shall include procedures for any resident who refuses to follow evacuation or emergency procedures. 

2. The CBRF's response to serious illness or accidents. 
3. Procedures to follow when a resident is missing. 
4. The CBRF's preparation for and response to severe weather including tornado and flooding. 
5. A route to dry land when the CBRF is located in a flood plain. 
6. Location of an emergency shelter for the residents. 
7. A means of transporting residents to the emergency shelter. 
8. How meals and medications will be provided to residents at the emergency shelter. 
(b) Exit diagram. The disaster plan shall have an exit diagram that shall be posted on each floor of the CBRF used 

by residents in a conspicuous place where it can be seen by the residents. The diagram shall identify the exit 
routes from the floor, including internal horizontal exits under par. (f)when applicable, smoke compartments or 
a designated meeting place outside and away from the building when evacuation to the outside is the planned 
response to a fire alarm. 

(c) Emergency and disaster procedures. Fire, tornado, flooding or other emergency or disaster procedures shall be 
clearly communicated to a new resident within 72 hours after admission. 

(d) Fire drills. 
1. Fire evacuation drills shall be conducted at least quarterly with both employees and residents. Drills shall be 

limited to the employees scheduled to work at that time. Documentation shall include the date and time of the 
drill and the CBRF's total evacuation time. The CBRF shall record residents having an evacuation time greater 
than the time allowed under s.  83.35 (5) and the type of assistance needed for evacuation. Fire evacuation drills 
may be announced in advance. 

2. At least one fire evacuation drill shall be held annually that simulates the conditions during usual sleeping 
hours. Fire evacuation drills may be announced in advance. Drills shall be limited to the employees scheduled 
to work during the residents' normal sleeping hours. 

(e) Other evacuation drills. Tornado, flooding, or other emergency or disaster evacuation drills shall be conducted 
at least semi-annually. 

 
DHS staff advised their review for the licensing of a facility will take a general look at the site 

accessibility, but stressed local emergency responders are best equipped to evaluate their ability to serve the 
facility.  Initial review of the DHS code and discussions with DHS staff indicate that DHS concerns lie more in 
the evacuation of the buildings, and emergency plans for a disaster.  DHS would ask for the operator to work 
with local Emergency Response personnel to develop emergency response evacuation plans.  Concerns from 
City Emergency Response personnel are focused on the vulnerability of tenants in this type of facility, and the 
significant number of Emergency call to similar facilities.  Hindrances to site access impede normally expected 
emergency response.  

 
 It is understood that this initial project approval is limited to Phase 1A which consists of one single 

story development containing:  30 Assisted Living unit, 22 Memory Care units, and 13 Independent Living 
duplexes (totally 26 apartment) with a Community Nook  (coffee and grab-and-go food) and a Telemedicine 
Suite (clinical exam rooms, office space and waiting area.  The Site plan application references the Phase 1B - 
38 unit apartment building, but that is not part of this approval.   

Secondary access was discussed at the June 5 meeting of the Public Safety Committee.  At that 
meeting the Fire Chief stated they would recommend the GDP carry the condition that a secondary access 
plan be in place prior to the approval of a Specific Site Plan for Phase 1B, and that the secondary access be in 
place prior to the occupancy of the apartment building that will be constructed as part of Phase 1B.  The Public 
Safety Committee was presented with a Developers Agreement that stated the secondary access would not be 
required until Phase 2, after the apartment building is constructed and occupied as part of Phase 1B.  The 
Public Safety Committee voted to approve the Developer’s Agreement as is.  However, the approval of the 
GDP was contingent on the access being approved by Emergency Response Personnel.  Therefore, the 
recommended contingency of the GDP approval remain that the secondary access plan, with property 
acquisition in place, be part of the Phase 1B Specific Site Plan, and the secondary access is to be constructed 
and in place prior to the occupancy of the apartment building as part of Phase 1B. 

http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/DHS%2083.47(2)(f)
http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/DHS%2083.35(5)


 
The updated GDP has removed the looped road through the north of the facility, which greatly 

decreases the emergency access within that portion of the facility.  Emergency access lanes and turnarounds 
have been included in the plan that seems to be acceptable.   

 
The other item of note in the conceptual GDP layout is the request for future encroachments into the 

200 ft shoreland buffer zone along the Wisconsin River and the installation of boat dock and possible a beach 
shelter.  These may be discussed in concept at this time, but no formal exception can be approved without 
specific plans of the exact location and nature of these encroachments.  As these encroachments are part of 
the final future phase of this development, those plans will not be developed for some time.  The final decision 
on this issue will have to be made at a later date with a potential future amendment to this PDD if approved at 
that time.  

The Site plan application that has been submitted includes Phase 1A being the assisted living and 
some of the commons and well as Phase 1B, which is the independent living apartments.  The City has an 
agreement that only covers Phase 1A of this development, so any approvals at this stage only apply to Phase 
1A.  An additional Site plan application must be submitted and approved before Phase 1B can commence.  

 
It is preferable for the City to have a completed Storm Water Management plan to review with the Site 

plan application.  The developer has stated that the Storm water management plan for Phase 1A is not 
complete, and has provided only preliminary information about the Storm water plan. 

Initially, it was indicated that most storm water would flow directly from this site westerly to the 
Wisconsin River.  As the storm water would not pass by or through any other property, it seemed adequate to 
allow the storm sewer system to be developed to DNR standards.  There is some concern that the private 
roads could have frequent flooding and wash out issues due to the apparent increase is larger rain fall events 
recently.  During the PDD review the City indicated it may require storm water capacities around the roads in 
excess of State minimum requirements.  It has also been stated that the developer intends to send a significant 
amount of its storm water east to cross Bowman Rd. and enter the wet-lands on the east side of Bowman Rd. 
The basic preliminary sketch of the storm water plan indicates that all of the storm water from the duplex 
development area will be directed towards Bowman Rd. and discharged just north of the Clubhouse.  This 
water will run to an existing smaller culvert that crosses a private drive immediately south of the clubhouse.  
Another smaller culvert then carries the storm water from the private drive across Bowman Rd to the east 
toward the wetland.  If the existing culverts are overcome with storm water, the developer will be responsible 
for up sizing these existing culverts.  The culvert discharge on the east side of Bowman Rd appear to be on top 
of a significant hill that drops down to the wetland below.  If erosion (or any other) storm water problems arise 
the developer will be responsible for installing additional rip rap or other erosion control measures.  

Especially given that a full Storm water management plan has not been provided with the Site plan 
application, it should be made clear that all storm water facilities in this development are the responsibility of 
the developer.  The developer is responsible to correct any storm water nuisances that this development may 
create.  The developer has stated that their storm water management plan will control the 100 year storm 
event to pre-development levels. 

There have already been storm water washout issues on Bowman Rd, so the City will require that the 
Bowman Rd crossing be designed to handle a high storm event.  Historically, there have been storm water 
issues from the developed portion of the existing Phase II of the Riverwood development having an adverse 
effect on the original Phase I Riverwood development.  These issues appear to have been privately corrected, 
but this development shall ensure that its storm water does not have an adverse effect on the property to the 
south, or any other property.   

Generally, City owned main line water and sewer utilities are located within the road ROW.  While the 
roads of this development will remain private, the developers intend to engineer and install the water and 
sewer utilities to City specifications and then turn those utilities over to the City with easements to allow City 
access to maintain the utilities.  The details of these easements must be ironed out and may be applied to the 
existing utilities, some of which may not be located in the roadway.  As such, the utility easements shall allow 
City vehicles access onto and through the property to access these easement.  The City should not be liable 
for any surface damage that may occur when accessing the water, sewer, or other utilities for maintenance 
purposes.  The City has made a significant investment in a GIS mapping system to accurately map all public 
utilities.  Prior to dedicating the any underground facilities to the City, the developer has provide the City with 
accurately GPS maps of the facilities that is compatible with the new City mapping system.     



 
As a standard issue with all new development, the City wants to ensure that proper buffers exist 

between the new development and existing properties.  It appears the neighboring properties to the north and 
south would be the main concern.  This development proposes duplexes neighboring the property to the south, 
which do not seem likely to create a nuisance.  The apartments to the north would be more of a concern, but 
the RR row provides an additional approximately 150’ set-back between the apartments and the neighboring 
residents.  Still, efforts should be made to maintain as many of the existing mature trees as possible to retain a 
buffer, and additional buffering may be requested if deemed prudent by the City. 

   
 

Approval of this PDD GDP should come with the following contingencies, which are to 
be considered additive to the contingencies from the November 2016 meeting: 

 
1. The utility easements within the facility do not hold the City responsible to repair any 

improvements above the utilities (i.e. pavement or landscaping) 
2. Any public utilities within the development meet City standards, are approved by the City, and 

utility easements approved by the City are recorded. 
3. Any underground facilities to be dedicated to the City are GPS and the City is provided 

adequate mapping of the facilities that is compatible with the City’s GIS mapping system. 
4. Fire lanes are accepted by the Fire Chief.   
5. The secondary access plan, while land acquisition in place, is provided with the Phase 1B Site 

Plan application.  The secondary access to the facility is in place prior to the occupancy of the 
Apartment building referred to as Phase 1B. 

6. The developer is responsible to correct any storm water nuisances that their development 
creates. 

7. Adequate buffers are established between the development and neighboring properties 
8. The developer cooperates with the City to resolve any nuisances that may result from this 

development. 
 

  
Approval of the Site plan application for Phase 1A should come with the following contingencies: 
 

1. All final utility plans (water, electric, sanitary and storm sewer) are provided to the City for review 
and approval prior to the commencement of any construction. 

2. Any site improvements not part of this plan shall be approved by City staff at their sole 
discretion.  

3. Storm water is not allowed to run on Bowman Rd. or anywhere else where it would cause a 
nuisance or damage.  The developer is responsible for upsizing downstream culverts and 
installing additional erosion control measures if required.   

4. This approval does not include Phase 1B.  An additional Site plan application is to be submitted 
and approved by the City prior to beginning Phase 1B.  

 
 
Chris Tollaksen 
City of Wis. Dells 
Planning & Zoning 
6/09/2017 



 

 
1230 South Boulevard, Baraboo, WI  53913 

(608) 356-2771     (800) 362-4505 
FAX:  (608) 356-2770     WEB ADDRESS:  www.msa-ps.com 

 
Page 1 of 1Y:\3 By Year\2017\Meetins - 2017\Planning - 2017\061417\Site plan - Riverwood\MSA - 00085075 Memo_Phase      

 

Memo 
  

 

 To: Chris Tollaksen, Zoning Adminstrator, City of Wisconsin Dells 

 From: Chuck Bongard, P.E. & Tim Mikonowicz, P.E. 

 Subject: Riverwood Site Plan  

 Date: June 9, 2017 
     
We have reviewed the revised overall layout for the Riverwood Development. Our comments are as follows: 
 
Layout: The significant change from the original plan is the removal of the second proposed access to Bowman 
Road and the accompanying perimeter drive along and parallel to the railroad tracks. Secondary access to the 
site had been a concern discussed at many of the early meetings so we will defer to the emergency services 
providers on whether or not this is a concern. 
 
The development will exclusively branch off of the existing entrance drive and there is a circle feature at the end 
of the drive in the dropoff area for the main building. 
 
Stormwater Management: What was provided on drainage was a schematic only but this layout shows the site 
drainage being divided with the duplex area now shown to drain toward Bowman Road. Additional detail and 
calculations will need to be provided to ensure that the rate of discharge to this area does not exceed the pre-
development rates as this could cause issues to downstream properties. 
 
Sanitary Sewer:  It appears that proposed public sanitary mains are 8-inch diameter, although they are not all 
labeled and there are no grades listed to determine if minimum pipe slopes have been satisfied. It is our 
recommendation that all private/public sanitary laterals are a minimum of 6-inch diameter up to the nearest 
clean-out to the building entrance. Additional details (pipe lengths, sizes, and grades) of the sanitary system are 
required prior to issuing any approvals on the City’s behalf. 
 
Water Main:  There appears to be several “dead-end” water main extensions associated with this phase. Our 
recommendation would be to eliminate as many dead-ends as possible by looping the proposed public water 
mains and including valves at appropriate locations to minimize service disruptions to proposed buildings. All 
hydrants, and proposed future hydrants, should be accessible to emergency response services. Horizontal 
directional drilling of pressure conduits across RR right of way is not an acceptable method. The pressure 
conduit would need to be cased within a steel casing. It appears several connections to the existing water main 
along the main entrance road (Shields) have been proposed. It should be noted that the age, size, and overall 
condition of this main are not known at this time, and multiple connections to this main should not be made 
until this information is verified. 







Chris
Text Box
Riverwood Phase 1A Specific Site planfor Approval 061417









Staff Report 
City of Wis. Dells Plan Commission, 11/14/2016 
Zoning Code Amendment 
Zoning Change – Planned Development District. 
 

Riverwood Eagle’s Nest, LLC has requested a zoning map change to re-zone the Riverwood Eagle 
Watch Condominiums and the associated Phase II and Phase III condominium expansion lands from R-5 
Residential – multi-family to Planned Development District 2.  The applicant would like to develop a 50+ senior 
living community that will provide independent living, assisted care, memory care, and medical services.  The 
development will also include food, recreation, and wellness activities; as well as worship, meeting, and social 
areas.  Overnight lodging will also be made available in the development for it’s resident families and guests.  
This mix of planned residential and commercial activities would not be permitted in any of the existing Zoning 
Districts, and the creation of a Planned Development District is necessary to accommodate this mix of uses. 
One other minor variance would result from set-backs from lot-lines that separate developer owned land in the 
condominium plat from developer owned land outside the condominium plat.  The 13 duplexes will be 
developed in a cluster that includes some of the property in the condominium plat and some property outside 
of the development plat.  As the developer owns the property on either side of the property line, the set-back 
requirement is not as significant.  Still, some of the duplex’s backyards will not be the standard 10’ from the lot- 
line.   

 
 Originally, the developer had proposed dedicating the roads within the development to the City.  

Creating these public roads required allowing flexibility from some of the lot set-back required in the City’s 
existing development standards.  This flexibility from set-back requirements is to allow the developer freedom 
to follow their design philosophy which is stated to include building placement that complements the current 
vegetation and topography.  The developer has stated that in many instances buildings were moved or 
eliminated to ensure mature trees remain in place.  However, the proposed site plan resulted in deviations from 
road ROW standards and well as set-back standards.  The set-back deviations may have been acceptable, but 
the ROW deviations are not and the road will remain private which removes any ROW or set-back deviations 
within the development. 

 
The conceptual Site plan for this development seems to be largely acceptable, with the main concern 

within the development being the new intersection with Bowman adjacent to the RR Row.  The odd angle of 
this intersection along with the proximity to the RR crossing raises concerns, and the recommendation would 
be for this road to loop back to itself, so the existing access to the property can be utilized.  Providing looped 
road through a development is a very important feature for improved emergency assesses and must be 
retained.  Roads adjacent and parallel to rail-roads are not ideal, but the benefit of the improved access this 
road provides far out-weighs the concerns with the proximity to the RR, except in the case instance of the 
intersection with Bowman Rd.  The developers have updated the original condominium plat to provide addition 
looping and improve access to the existing lots.   

 
The other item of note in the conceptual layout is the request for future encroachments into the 200 ft 

shoreland buffer zone along the Wisconsin River and the installation of boat dock and possible a beach 
shelter.  These may be discussed in concept at this time, but no formal exception can be approved without 
specific plans of the exact location and nature of these encroachments.  As these encroachments are part of 
the final future phase of this development, those plans will not be developed for some time.  The final decision 
on this issue will have to be made at a later date with a potential future amendment to this PDD if approved at 
that time.  

 
Another significant concern with this development is the lack of a secondary access across the RR 

tracks to this site.  The development plan identifies a second off-grade RR crossing to the north-west of the 
Bowman Rd crossing, in the form of a tunnel or bridge designed for pedestrian and golf-cart use only.  This 
leaves Bowman Rd as the only emergency vehicle access to the site.  Given the number of senior residents 
and the multi-story building proposed for this development, a blockage of access across the tracks at Bowman 
Rd. could create a significant emergency response problem.  Phase I of this development proposed 124 
dwelling units, including the 3-story apartment building, making emergency access an immediate concern.  
Normal train operations to not include routine stops in this area, and blockages of the Bowman Rd. crossing 

Chris
Highlight

Chris
Highlight

Chris
Text Box
RiverwoodOriginal ApplicationNovember 2016



would normally be only a few minutes (it should be noted that emergency response personnel consider a few 
minutes to be significant and very likely to result in significantly reduced emergency response results).  While 
medical services will be provided on site, local emergency responders routinely respond to current facilities 
with medical services and routinely find them unable to provide adequate emergency services.  There is also 
the concern with train issues causing more substantial restrictions to the Bowman Rd. railroad crossing.  While 
a major train derailment seems to be rather unlikely, the Police department has reported several recent cases 
where the trains have been stopped in this vicinity due to conflicts with vehicles and pedestrians on the tracks.  
Therefore, the potential for a lack of emergency access to the sight is a real concern.  As such, an off-grade 
crossing that can accommodate an ambulance is a minimum requirement for this development.  Options 
discussed have been constructing a bridge at the Bowman Rd crossing to provide permanent off-grade vehicle 
access to the site, enhancing the proposed pedestrian crossing to the north-west so it can accommodate an 
ambulance, or establishing an emergency vehicle access to Bowman Rd. from the Grand Cambrian RR tunnel 
that exists approximately ½ mile south-east of the Bowman Rd railroad crossing.  
 See the MSA memo attached at the end of this report for additional comments of this proposed 
development and PDD application. 
 

It should be noted that this PDD process involves a conceptual review of the development and 
identification of what existing City standards are being modified in this plan.  If the PDD is approved, the 
developer must return with a detailed Site Plan application to be approved by the City prior to any construction.  
While significant effect is put forth to identify any deviations from City standards, it does not seem 
unreasonable for additional items to be identified during the development of the detailed plan and construction 
documents.  Amendments may be made to this PDD if future aspects of this development are identified that 
require other City standards be reviewed.  It is also noted that upon approval of the new PDD Zoning for this 
property, a background zoning district is assigned, in this case the current R-5 Residential multi-family Zoning 
has been assigned, as this development remains primarily a multi-family residential in nature.  Any future land 
uses or developments that are not included in this plan, and are not incorporated into the plan as an 
amendment, will be evaluated and regulated using the standards of the background Zoning district (R-5 
Residntial mutli-family). 

 
The proposed property includes the approximately 85 parcels created by the Riverwood Eagle Watch 

Condominium Plat in May of 2002, as well as the 2 parcels to the north (11291-2200.1902 and 11291-
2200.1903) that were designated as condominium expansion lands.  These parcels are all designated with a 
2200 prefix, e.g. 11291-2200.xxxx. 

For some background, in 1996 the original developer came to the City with a request to develop the 
property on the west side of Bowman Rd., south of the Railroad tracks.   The original plan was to develop 
Managed Condominiums that could be rented nightly.  As a Commercial use, the Managed Condominiums 
required City approval.  There were significant concerns from residents on Bowman Rd. about the traffic the 
nightly rentals would generate on the residential streets utilized to access the development.  The developer 
pointed out that the Ordinances at the time allowed them to develop standard residential condominiums 
without City approval.  The city denied the request for Managed Condominiums at the July 1, 1996 Common 
Council meeting.  The developer then moved forward developing residential condominiums without the need 
for City approval.  In March of 1997 the City entered into an agreement with the developer that the developer 
would engineer and construct the utilities to serve the residential condominiums to City specifications.  Upon 
acceptance by the City Engineer the City would take ownership of those utilities and easement would be 
provided to the City to maintain the utilities.  At this time no easements for these utilities have been located.  
The roads in the original development remained private and the agreement stated the developer would be 
responsible for improvements to Bowman Rd south of the tracks if traffic to the condominiums required it.  
Phase I of the development was platted as the “Riverwood Condo Plat” in October of 1997, and the plat does 
not appear to have required City approval.  Phase I was completely constructed and a significant number of 
units were sold.  This original Phase I condominium and exists on it’s own today and is south of and not part of 
the current proposal.  Phase II of the development was platted as the “Riverwood Eagle Watch Condominium 
Plat” in May of 2002, and the plat does not appear to have required City approval.  This plat has only been 
partially developed, with 18 dwelling units constructed, 15 sold and 3 owned by the current applicant. 

 
The current applicant intends to amend and develop the remainder of the Phase II condominium, as 

well as the unplatted expansion property that extend north to the RR tracks.  The new proposed development 



is a 50+ senior residential facility, with medical, wellness, and commercial activities incorporated, as well as 
ability to allow visitors to rent rooms on a short term basis.  No one existing standard Zoning district would 
allow these mix of uses, so a special Planned Development District designation is required.  The applicant had 
requested a special road maintenance agreement, which would have require deviations from the standard road 
Right of Way set-backs.  The Planned Development request also includes a request to allow future 
development into the 200 ft River Shoreland Overlay District.  The applicant has also requested boat docks 
and a beach shelter.  The River and Shoreland requests can be discussed at this time, but cannot be approved 
without specific plans.  These uses must come back to the City and be considered as a future amendment to 
this PDD.  

 
The applicant has laid out a development plan that appears to be a progressive and innovative 

approach to senior housing that is aimed at providing the care and amenities to promote an active lifestyle for 
its senior residents.  There plan includes combining 14 undeveloped lots in the existing condominium plat and 
developing them with 13 duplexes for 26 dwelling units.  The unplatted property to the north would be 
developed with a mixture of additional apartments that include a 3-story 38 unit building, 4-plex, 8-plex and 
possibly other living arrangements.  The development would have a continuum of care that extends from 
independent living, to assisted living, memory care, and community based residential facility certified 
healthcare services.  The development will also include a commons area that will provide an array of 
commercial services to residents and guests, including health care services, dining and drinking services, 
convenience sales, and activities such as an artisan shop to allowing opportunities for residents to create art 
and woodwork.  Another possibility is to provide beer brewing equipment for residents to utilize.  The 
development will also have community uses, such as worship facilities and areas for art, education, recreation, 
social activities for residents, guests and community use. 

 
A trail system is proposed throughout the development that is planned to be connected to future trails 

on adjoining City property and the DNR property to the south.  The developer has stated they intend to develop 
the trails within their development and make them open to the public.  The developer has stated they would 
like to work with the City and DNR to create adjoining trails on the adjacent City and DNR property that would 
ultimately extend north-west to connect to the downtown near the pool.   

 
The applicant has laid out a 3-Phase development plan:  Phase I will include 13 independent living 

duplexes (26 dwelling units), 38 moderate income housing apartments in a 3-story building, 30 single story 
Assisted Living apartment, and 12 single story Memory Care apartments; for a total of 106 dwelling units as 
well as Commons area.  When adding the existing 18 units already constructed, there will be 124 dwelling 
units when Phase I is complete.  Phase II will include additional living and care facilities, bringing the total 
dwellings to approximately 229 units, plus any additional in-fill construction that may occur in the existing 
condo plat.  Phase III is to include a larger retreat center with a spa and some single family homes.   

 
It appears that the applicant has put together a land use plan.  The somewhat isolated nature of this 

property also seems to be conducive to a mixed use campus development.  This would seem to be a positive 
for the community and a good candidate for PDD designation to allow the freedom and flexibility for this 
development.   

 
It appears to this office that the main concern for the land uses of this development are the effects on 

the existing neighborhoods north of the railroad tracks.  Of primary concern would be the potential for 
increased traffic if the commercial elements of the development begin to draw a significant amount of use from 
people outside of the development residents.  The applicant has stated that all of the amenities on the site will 
be geared primarily for their residents, and made available to the community mainly from a desire to share the 
benefits of the facility with the community.  It is assumed that this use will not result in significant traffic 
problems for the residents along the roads leading to this development.  Approval of this PDD designation 
should be contingent that the commercial activities remain an accessory amenity to the site residents and 
community.   If any of the commercial facilities begins to generate traffic or any other nuisance to the existing 
area residents, the owner of the facility will cooperate with the City to address those issues to the satisfaction 
of the City.  An example of this would be if brewing facilities on the site begin to become successful as an in 
dependant commercial activity, generating a significant amount of traffic through the residential neighborhoods 
leading to this development. The expectation is that the development owners would restrict access to these 



commercial facilities to decrease the traffic, and potentially reduce a revenue source, because this commercial 
activity is not intended to be the primary use of this development.  In general, the developer will be expected to 
cooperate with the City to address any traffic or other concerns that may arise.  This would be a contingency of 
the commercial allowance of the PDD.  

 
A major concern for this development is the limited access across the train tracks to the site.  Given the 

significant number of senior occupants and the multi-story building proposed in Phase I of this development, 
emergency response officers require an improved or secondary access to this site.   

 
Another concern has been the developers desire to have the roads in this development maintained by 

the City.  The City had preliminarily agreed to consider taking over the roads if they could be improved to meet 
City specifications.  One of those specifications is a 66ft ROW, which the developer had stated did not fit within 
their development.  The developer has revised their application to keep the roads private.  It should be clear 
that storm sewer utilities are part of the road way, and therefore will remain private in this development as well. 

   
Preliminary review of the site appeared to indicate that most storm water would flow directly from this 

site westerly to the Wisconsin River.  Based on this lack of stormwater threat to neighboring properties, it 
seems adequate to allow the storm sewer system to be developed to DNR standards.  There is some concern 
that the private roads could have frequent flooding and wash out issues due to the apparent increase is larger 
rain fall events recently.  During the final site plan review, the City may require storm water capacities around 
the roads in excess of State minimum requirements.  It has also been stated that the developer will attempt to 
send a significant amount of its storm water east to cross Bowman Rd. and enter the wet-lands on the east 
side of Bowman Rd that take a longer route to the Wisconsin River.  There have already been storm water 
washout issues on Bowman Rd, so the City will require that the Bowman Rd crossing will be designed to 
handle a high storm event.  Historically, there have been storm water issues from the developed portion of this 
Phase of the Riverwood development having an adverse effect on the original Phase I Riverwood 
development.  These issues appear to have been privately corrected, but this development shall ensure that its 
storm water does not have an adverse effect on the property to the south, or any other property. 

 
Generally, City owned main line water and sewer utilities are located within the road ROW.  While the 

roads of this development will remain private, the developers intend to engineer and install the water and 
sewer utilities to City specifications and then turn those utilities over to the City with easements to allow City 
access to maintain the utilities.  The details of these easements must be ironed out and may be applied to the 
existing utilities, some of which may not be located in the roadway.  As such, the utility easements shall allow 
City vehicles access onto and through the property to access these easement.  The City should not be liable 
for any surface damage that may occur when accessing the water, sewer, or other utilities for maintenance 
purposes.  It shall also be required that a second water supply and possibly electric supply be installed to loop 
the utilities in this development.     

 
As a standard issue with all new development, the City wants to ensure that proper buffers exist 

between the new development and existing properties.  It appears the neighboring properties to the north and 
south would be the main concern.  This development proposes duplexes neighboring the property to the south, 
which do not seem likely to create a nuisance.  The apartments to the north would be more of a concern, but 
the RR row provides an additional approximately 150’ set-back between the apartments and the neighboring 
residents.  Still, efforts should be made to maintain as many of the existing mature trees as possible to retain a 
buffer, and additional buffering may be requested if deemed prudent by the City. 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



In conclusion, the request for a PDD Zoning was required to allow for commercial land uses to be 
mixed into a multi-family residential development and to allow some of the duplexes to have rear yard set-back 
that do not meet the standard 10’ requirement, where the developer owns the property on the other side of the 
lot-line.  This request seems reasonable for this project, with the note that if one of the properties were sold to 
a  party, the lot-lines would have to be corrected to create a standard 10’ rear-yard set-back.  It appears there 
is enough physical space to accommodate this, but it does not seem necessary to change the boundaries of 
the existing condominium plat when there is the same owner on either side.  The background zoning for this 
development will be R-5 Residential multi-family. 

 
Approval of this PDD should come with the following contingencies: 

1. The roads within the development remain privately owned and maintained. 
2. Any public utilities within the development meet City standards, are approved by the City, and 

utility easements approved by the City are recorded. 
3. The access the facility is approved by Emergency response personnel. 
4. A detailed Site plan is approved by the City, that includes but is not exclusive to the following: 

a. The private development road intersections with Bowman Rd. are approved by 
the City. 

b. Utility plans that include looping utility supplies to the development. 
c. A Storm water management plan that will not create adverse effects on City 

streets, neighboring properties, or anything else 
5. Commercial uses on this development do not created traffic nuisances on Bowman Rd. or other 

residential streets.  Commercial uses will be restricted if the City deems them to be creating a 
nuisance to the existing residential zones. 

6. Adequate buffers are established between the development and neighboring properties 
7. The developer cooperates with the City to resolve any nuisances that may result from this 

development. 
 

  
 

Specific variances from standard City Zoning and sub-division requirements include: mix of Residential 
and Commercial uses in a single zone, reduced rear-yard set-backs to property lines where the owner is the 
same on both sides. 
 
 
Chris Tollaksen 
City of Wis. Dells 
Planning & Zoning 
11/11/16 





Chris
Text Box
Item 21





































CSM 
Mark Carlson for Paul Olson 
Sauk Co Parcel 291-0089-10000 
 
The City has received a CSM to split that portion of Sauk Co tax parcel 291-0089-10000 that lies between 
South Frontage Rd and STH 13.  There are no apparent issues with this land division.  However, this 
parcel also contains a strip of land that wraps around the West, south, and east side of the Wei’s 
Chinese restaurant property.  Before this land division can occur, the rest of this parcel must be 
addressed. 
 
The owner of the property, Paul Olson, has stated that the parcel surrounding the restaurant would be 
combined with the restaurant parcel (29-0089-10000), which would be the ideal situation. 
 
The City can approve this CSM with the condition that the southern portion of the property be 
addressed.  This office will hold this CSM unsigned until there is verification that the southern property 
concern has been resolved.  This office can than release the CSM to be signed by the City and recorded 
at the County to complete this action. 
 
Approval of this CSM should be contingent on the portion parcel 291-0089-10000 south of South 
Frontage Road being combined with parcel 291-0089-30000. 
 
Chris Tollaksen 
City of Wisconsin Dells 
Planning & Zoning  

Chris
Text Box
Item 22






